# Semi-Annual Financial Statements - June 30, 2022





Marret High Yield Strategies Fund

# **Table of Contents**

# MARRET HIGH YIELD STRATEGIES FUND

# **Financial Statements**

Statements of Financial Position	1
Statements of Comprehensive Income	2
Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units	3
Statements of Cash Flows	4
Schedule of Investment Portfolio	5
Fund Specific Notes to Financial Statements	6
Notes to the Financial Statements	10
Legal Notice	16

To request an alternate format of this document, please contact us at service@ci.com or 1-800-792-9355.

Marret Asset Management Inc., the Manager of the Fund, appoints independent auditors to audit the Fund's Annual Financial Statements. Under Canadian securities laws (National Instrument 81-106), if an auditor has not reviewed the Semi-Annual Financial Statements, this must be disclosed in an accompanying notice.

The Fund's independent auditors have not performed a review of these Semi-Annual Financial Statements in accordance with standards established by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.

Financial Statements (unaudited)

# Statements of Financial Position

(in \$ except for per unit amounts and units outstanding)

	as at Jun. 30, 2022	as at Dec. 31, 2021
Assets		
Current assets		
Investments	14,169,157	13,283,585
Cash	122,924	128,201
Receivable for investments sold	-	-
Receivable for unit subscriptions	-	-
Interest receivable	-	-
Dividends receivable	-	-
Other assets	56,653	91,265
Derivative assets	-	-
	14,348,734	13,503,051
Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Bank overdraft	-	-
Payable for investments purchased	-	-
Payable for unit redemptions	-	-
Management fees payable	-	-
Other accrued expenses	27,184	12,447
Distributions payable to holders of redeemable units	-	-
Derivative liabilities	-	-
	27,184	12,447
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	14,321,550	13,490,604
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per unit:		
Class A	0.39	0.37
Number of redeemable units outstanding:		
Class A	36,729,002	36,729,002

Financial Statements (unaudited)

# Statements of Comprehensive Income

for the periods ended June 30 (in \$ except for per unit amounts and number of units)

	2022	2021
Income		
Net gain (loss) on investments and derivatives		
Dividends	-	-
Interest for distribution purposes	2,214	4,858
Net realized gain (loss) on sale of investments and derivatives	· -	
Net realized foreign exchange gain (loss) on investments and derivatives	-	-
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in value of investments and derivatives	885,572	2,057,730
Total net gain (loss) on investments and derivatives	887,786	2,062,588
Other income	·	
Net realized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash	-	_
Change in unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash	43	(69)
Other income	-	5,697
Total other income	43	5,628
Total income	887,829	2,068,216
Expenses		
Management fees (Note 5)	-	-
Operating fees	-	-
Fund administration expense	-	-
Audit fees	10,170	24,215
Legal fees	8,250	29,910
Trustee fees	-	-
Transfer agent fees	4,136	8,435
Custodial and administrative fees	5,650	4,925
Independent review committee fees	-	-
Unitholders reporting costs	-	-
Commissions and other portfolio transaction costs	-	-
Professional fees	-	-
Regulatory fees	7,800	19,735
Other expenses	20,877	-
Interest expense	-	-
Withholding taxes	-	-
Total expenses	56,883	87,220
Increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	830,946	1,980,996
Increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per unit: Class A	0.02	0.06
0.000 / 1	0.02	3.00
Weighted average number of units:		
Class A	36,729,002	36,729,002

Financial Statements (unaudited)

Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units for the periods ended June 30 (in \$)

	2022	2021
Class A		
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at the beginning of period	13,490,604	16,840,014
Increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	830,946	1,980,996
Distributions to holders of redeemable units		
From net investment income	-	-
From net realized gains	-	-
Return of capital	-	(1,702,757)
Total distributions to holders of redeemable units	-	(1,702,757)
Redeemable unit transactions		
Proceeds from redeemable units issued	-	-
Reinvestment of distributions to holders of redeemable units	-	-
Redemption of redeemable units	-	-
Net increase (decrease) from redeemable unit transactions	-	-
Net increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	830,946	278,239
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at the end of period	14,321,550	17,118,253

Financial Statements (unaudited)

# Statements of Cash Flows

for the periods ended June 30 (in \$)

Increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units         830,946         1,980,996           Adjustments for:		2022	2021
Adjustments for:  Net realized (gain) loss on sale of investments and derivatives  Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in value of investments and derivatives  Change in unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss on cash  Action and the content of the	Cash flows from (used in) operating activities		
Net realized (gain) loss on sale of investments and derivatives         (885,572)         (2,057,730)           Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in value of investments and derivatives         (885,572)         (2,057,730)           Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in value of investments and derivatives         2,000,950         6           Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments and derivatives         -         (999,860)           Uncrease) decrease in interest receivable         -         (999,860)           Uncrease) decrease in other assets         34,612         -           Uncrease) decrease in other assets         5,320         1,571,827           Vet cash from (used in) operating activities         -         -           Proceeds from issuance of redeemable units         -         1,702,75           Net cash from (used in) financing activities         -         1,702,75           Vet cash from (used in) financing activities         -         1,702,75           Vet cash from (used in) financing activities <t< td=""><td>Increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units</td><td>830,946</td><td>1,980,996</td></t<>	Increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units	830,946	1,980,996
Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in value of investments and derivatives         (885,572)         (2,057,730)           Change in unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss on cash         (43)         66           Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments and derivatives         2,700,956           Purchase of investments and derivatives         2,909,860           (Increase) decrease in interest receivable         3           (Increase) decrease in other assets         34,612           Increase) decrease in other assets         34,612           Increase) decrease in other assets         34,612           Increase) decrease in other assets         3,520           Net cash from (used in) operating activities         5,320           Cash flows from (used in) operating activities         2           Proceeds from issuance of redeemable units         2           Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions         2         1,702,75           Vet cash from (used in) financing activities         3         66           Change in unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash         43         66           Vet increase (decrease) in cash         5,320         130,93           Vet increase (decrease) in cash         128,201         26,482           Cash (bank overdraft), beginning of period	Adjustments for:		
Change in unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss on cash         (43)         66           Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments and derivatives         -         2,700,956           Purchase of investments and derivatives         -         (999,866           (Increase) decrease in interest receivable         -         -           (Increase) decrease in dividends receivable         -         -           (Increase) decrease in other assets         34,612         -           Increase (decrease) in other ascrued expenses         14,737         (52,600           Net cash from (used in) operating activities         -         -           Cash flows from (used in) financing activities         -         -           Proceeds from issuance of redeemable units         -         -           Proceeds from used in) financing activities         -         -           Proceeds from (used in) financing activities         -         -           Proceeds from (used in) financing activities         -         -           Change in unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash         43         66           Vet increase (decrease) in cash         43         66           Vet increase (decrease) in cash         5,320         (130,33)           Cash (bank overdraft), beginning of period         128,201<	Net realized (gain) loss on sale of investments and derivatives	-	-
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments and derivatives	Change in unrealized (appreciation) depreciation in value of investments and derivatives	(885,572)	(2,057,730)
Purchase of investments and derivatives         -         (999,866 (Increase) decrease in interest receivable (Increase) decrease in interest receivable (Increase) decrease in individends receivable (Increase) decrease in individends receivable (Increase) decrease in other assetts         34,612           Increase (decrease) in other assetts         34,612           Increase (decrease) in other accrued expenses         14,737         (52,600 (5,300))           Net cash from (used in) operating activities         -         -           Proceeds from issuance of redeemable units         -         -           Proceeds from issuance of redeemable units         -         -           Proceeds from (used in) financing activities         -         -           Change in unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash         43         (66           Net cash from (used in) financing activities         -         -         -           Change in unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash         43         (66           Net increase (decrease) in cash         (5,320)         (130,93)           Cash (bank overdraft), end of period         128,201	Change in unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss on cash	(43)	69
(Increase) decrease in interest receivable   -	Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments and derivatives <sup>^</sup>	-	2,700,959
(Increase) decrease in dividends receivable         -           (Increase) decrease in other assets         34,612           Increase (decrease) in other accrued expenses         14,737         (52,608           Net cash from (used in) operating activities         (5,320)         1,571,828           Cash flows from (used in) financing activities         -         -           Proceeds from issuance of redeemable units         -         -           Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable units         -         (1,702,75)           Net cash from (used in) financing activities         -         (1,702,75)           Net cash from (used in) financing activities         -         (1,702,75)           Change in unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash         43         (68           Vet increase (decrease) in cash         (5,320)         (130,93)           Cash (bank overdraft), beginning of period         128,201         264,825           Cash (bank overdraft), end of period         122,924         133,825           Supplementary Information:         -         -           Dividends received, net of withholding tax*         -         -           nterest received, net of withholding tax*         2,214         4,856           Dividends paid*         -         -         - <td>Purchase of investments and derivatives</td> <td>-</td> <td>(999,860)</td>	Purchase of investments and derivatives	-	(999,860)
Increase   decrease   in other assets   14,737   (52,600)     Increase   decrease   in other accrued expenses   14,737   (52,600)     Increase   decrease   in other accrued expenses   14,737   (52,600)     Increase   decrease   in other accrued expenses   15,320   1,571,820     Increase   decrease   in other accrued expenses   (5,320   1,571,820     Increase   decrease   in other accrued expenses   (5,320   1,571,820     Increase   decrease   in other accrued expenses   (1,702,751,820     Increase   decrease   in other accrued expenses   (1,702,751,820     Increase   decrease   in other accrued expenses   (1,702,751,820     Increase   decrease   in case   (1,702,751,820     Increase   (1,702,751,820     Increase   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820     Increase   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820   (1,702,751,820	(Increase) decrease in interest receivable	-	-
Increase (decrease) in other accrued expenses   14,737   (52,608   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828   1,571,828	(Increase) decrease in dividends receivable	-	-
Net cash from (used in) operating activities  Cash flows from (used in) financing activities  Proceeds from issuance of redeemable units  Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable units  Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions  Net cash from (used in) financing activities  1 (1,702,75)  Net cash from (used in) financing activities  1 (1,702,75)  Change in unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash  Net increase (decrease) in cash  Cash (bank overdraft), beginning of period  128,201 (130,93)  Cash (bank overdraft), end of period  122,924 (133,82)  Supplementary Information:  Dividends received, net of withholding tax*  - nterest received, net of withholding tax*  - 2,214 (4,85)  Dividends paid*  - 3	(Increase) decrease in other assets	34,612	-
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities Proceeds from issuance of redeemable units Amounts paid on redeemption of redeemable units Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units Change in unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash Net cash from (used in) financing activities Change in unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash Net increase (decrease) in cash Cash (bank overdraft), beginning of period Cash (bank overdraft), beginning of period Cash (bank overdraft), end of withholding tax* Interest received, net of withholding tax* Cash (bank overdraft), end of period Cash (bank	Increase (decrease) in other accrued expenses	14,737	(52,608)
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable units Amounts paid on redeemable units Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions  1. (1,702,75)  Net cash from (used in) financing activities  1. (1,702,75)  Net cash from (used in) financing activities  1. (1,702,75)  Change in unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash  Net increase (decrease) in cash  Cash (bank overdraft), beginning of period  128,201  128,201  128,202  133,825  Supplementary Information:  Dividends received, net of withholding tax*  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (1,702,75)  1. (	Net cash from (used in) operating activities	(5,320)	1,571,826
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions  - (1,702,75)  Net cash from (used in) financing activities  - (1,702,75)  Change in unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash  Net increase (decrease) in cash  Cash (bank overdraft), beginning of period  128,201  264,829  Cash (bank overdraft), end of period  122,924  133,829  Supplementary Information:  Dividends received, net of withholding tax*  - nterest received, net of withholding tax*  2,214  4,856  Dividends paid*	Cash flows from (used in) financing activities Proceeds from issuance of redeemable units	-	-
Net cash from (used in) financing activities         -         (1,702,75)           Change in unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash         43         (68           Net increase (decrease) in cash         (5,320)         (130,93)           Cash (bank overdraft), beginning of period         128,201         264,829           Cash (bank overdraft), end of period         122,924         133,829           Supplementary Information:         -         -           Dividends received, net of withholding tax*         -         -           nterest received, net of withholding tax*         2,214         4,856           Dividends paid*         -         -	Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable units	-	-
Change in unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash  Net increase (decrease) in cash Cash (bank overdraft), beginning of period  128,201  264,825  Cash (bank overdraft), end of period  122,924  133,825  Supplementary Information:  Dividends received, net of withholding tax*  nterest received, net of withholding tax*  2,214  4,856  Dividends paid*	Distributions paid to holders of redeemable units, net of reinvested distributions	-	(1,702,757)
Net increase (decrease) in cash (5,320) (130,93° Cash (bank overdraft), beginning of period 128,201 264,829 Cash (bank overdraft), end of period 122,924 133,829 Cash (bank overdraft), end of	Net cash from (used in) financing activities	-	(1,702,757)
Cash (bank overdraft), beginning of period 128,201 264,825 Cash (bank overdraft), end of period 122,924 133,825  Supplementary Information:  Dividends received, net of withholding tax*	Change in unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash	43	(69)
Cash (bank overdraft), end of period 122,924 133,825  Supplementary Information:  Dividends received, net of withholding tax*  nterest received, net of withholding tax*  2,214 4,856  Dividends paid*  - 4	Net increase (decrease) in cash	(5,320)	(130,931)
Supplementary Information:  Dividends received, net of withholding tax* - nterest received, net of withholding tax* 2,214 4,858 Dividends paid* -	Cash (bank overdraft), beginning of period	128,201	264,825
Dividends received, net of withholding tax* - nterest received, net of withholding tax* 2,214 4,850 Dividends paid* -	Cash (bank overdraft), end of period	122,924	133,825
Dividends received, net of withholding tax* - nterest received, net of withholding tax* 2,214 4,850 Dividends paid* -	Sunnlamentary Information:		
nterest received, net of withholding tax* 2,214 4,850 Dividends paid* -	··· ·	-	-
ividends paid* -	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	2 214	4.858
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-	.,500
	Interest paid*	_	_

<sup>^</sup>Sales represent repayments of bonds.

<sup>\*</sup>Dividends and interest received as well as dividends and interest paid relate to operating activities of the Fund.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Schedule of Investment Portfolio as at June 30, 2022 (unaudited)

Number of Shares/		Average Cost	Fair Value
Par Value	Description	(\$)	(\$)
	CANADIAN BONDS		
	Canadian Corporate Bonds (98.94%)		
20,330,758	Cline Mining Corp., Floating Rate, 2030/07/08	20,330,758	13,011,685
1,808,550	Cline Mining Corp., Floating Rate, 2030/07/08	1,808,550	1,157,472
1,000,330	Cline Willing Corp., Floating Hate, 2000/07/00	22,139,308	14,169,157
	Total Canadian Bonds (98.94%)	22,139,308	14,169,157
	Total Callaulali Bolius (30.3470)	22,133,300	14,103,137
	CANADIAN EQUITIES		
	Canadian Equities (0.00%)		
6,878,247	Cline Mining Corp., Convertible	1,768,969	-
		1,768,969	-
	Total Canadian Equities (0.00%)	1,768,969	-
	Less: Commissions and other portfolio transaction costs	-	
	Total Investments (98.94%)	23,908,277	14,169,157
	Other Assets, Less Liabilities (1.06%)		152,393
	Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units (100.00%)		14,321,550

Fund Specific Notes to Financial Statements (unaudited)

# Redeemable Unit Transactions (Note 4)

for the periods ended June 30

	2022	2021
		_
Class A		
Number of redeemable units at the beginning of period	36,729,002	36,729,002
Redeemable units issued for cash	-	-
Redeemable units issued for reinvested distributions	-	-
Redeemable units redeemed	-	-
Number of redeemable units at the end of period	36,729,002	36,729,002

Fund Specific Notes to Financial Statements (unaudited)

# Financial Instruments Risks (Note 7)

### Concentration Risk

For Concentration Risk as at June 30, 2022, refer to the Schedule of Investment Portfolio.

The table below summarizes the Fund's exposure to concentration risk.

as at December 31, 2021

## % of Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

Canadian Corporate Bonds	98.47
Total Bonds	98.47
Canadian Equities	-
Total Equities	
Total Investments	98.47

### Credit Risk

The Fund was invested in fixed income securities, preferred securities and derivative instruments, if any, with the following credit ratings, as per the tables below.

as at June 30, 2022

### % of Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

Credit Rating^	Long	Short	Net
Unrated	98.94	-	98.94
Total	98.94	-	98.94

as at December 31, 2021

#### % of Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Units

Credit Rating^	Long	Short	Net
Unrated	98.47	-	98.47
Total	98.47	-	98.47

<sup>^</sup>Credit ratings are obtained from S&P Global Ratings, where available, otherwise ratings are obtained from: Moody's Investors Service or Dominion Bond Rating Service, respectively.

## Other Price Risk

As at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the other price risk of the Fund was insignificant as the Fund was invested in fixed income securities.

# Currency Risk

As at June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Fund had no significant exposure to currency risk as the Fund's investments were primarily denominated in Canadian dollars, the functional currency of the Fund.

# Interest Rate Risk

The tables below summarize the Fund's exposure to interest rate risk, categorized by the contractual maturity date.

as at June 30, 2022

Bonds	Long (in \$)	Short (in \$)	Net (in \$)
< 1 year	-	-	-
1-3 years	-	-	-
3-5 years	-	-	-
> 5 years	14,169,157	-	14,169,157
Total	14,169,157	-	14,169,157

Fund Specific Notes to Financial Statements (unaudited)

# Interest Rate Risk (cont'd)

as at December 31, 2021

Bonds	Long (in \$)	Short (in \$)	Net (in \$)
< 1 year	13,283,585	-	13,283,585
1-3 years	-	-	-
3-5 years	-	-	-
> 5 years	-	-	-
Total	13,283,585	-	13,283,585

As at June 30, 2022, had the prevailing interest rates increased or decreased by 1% (December 31, 2021 - 1%), with all other variables held constant, net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units of the Fund would have decreased or increased, respectively, by approximately \$106,366 (December 31, 2021 - \$32,754). In practice, the actual results may differ from this analysis and the difference may be material.

# Fair Value Hierarchy

The tables below summarize the inputs used by the Fund in valuing the Fund's investments and derivatives carried at fair value.

as at June 30, 2022

	Level 1 (in \$)	Level 2 (in \$)	Level 3 (in \$)	Total (in \$)
Bonds	-	-	14,169,157	14,169,157
Equities	-	-	-	-
Total	-	-	14,169,157	14,169,157

as at December 31, 2021

	Level 1 (in \$)	Level 2 (in \$)	Level 3 (in \$)	Total (in \$)
Bonds	-	-	13,283,585	13,283,585
Equities	-	-	-	-
Total	-	-	13,283,585	13,283,585

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the period ended June 30, 2022 and the year ended December 31, 2021.

# Level 3 Reconciliation

The tables below summarize the movement in financial instruments classified as Level 3.

for the period ended June 30, 2022

							Change in Unrealized	
	Balance at			Transfers	Transfers	Realized Gain	Appreciation	Balance at
	Dec. 31, 2021 (in \$)	Purchases (in \$)	Sales (in \$)	In (in \$)	(Out) (in \$)	(Loss) (in \$)	(Depreciation) (in \$)	Jun. 30, 2022 (in \$)
Bonds	13,283,585	-	-	-	-	-	885,572	14,169,157
Equities		-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total	13,283,585	-	-	-	-	-	885,572	14,169,157

Fund Specific Notes to Financial Statements (unaudited)

Level 3 Reconciliation (cont'd)

for the year ended December 31, 2021

							Change in Unrealized				
	Balance at Dec. 31, 2020 (in \$)	Purchases (in \$)	Sales* (in \$)	Transfers In (in \$)	Transfers (Out) (in \$)	Realized Gain (Loss) (in \$)	Appreciation (Depreciation) (in \$)	Balance at Dec. 31, 2021 (in \$)			
Bonds	16,682,382	-	(5,378,477)	-	-	-	1,979,680	13,283,585			
Equities	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			
Total	16,682,382	-	(5,378,477)	-	-	-	1,979,680	13,283,585			

<sup>\*</sup>Sales represent repayments of bonds.

The tables below summarize the significant unobservable inputs used in fair value measurement of the Level 3 investments and the impact to the valuation of a reasonably possible change to the significant unobservable input. There is inherently significant measurement uncertainty associated with such investments. The actual results on realization of the positions could materially differ from the estimates of fair value on the reporting date.

for the period ended June 30, 2022

				Value of		
				Unobservable	Change in	Change in
	Fair Value	Valuation Technique	Unobservable Inputs	Inputs	Valuation +	Valuation -
Description	(in \$)				(in \$)	(in \$)
Cline Mining Corp., Floating Rate, 2030/07/08	13,011,685	Discounted Cash Flow	Discount rate	12%	2,150,891	4,936,678
Cline Mining Corp., Floating Rate, 2030/07/08	1,157,472	Discounted Cash Flow	Discount rate	12%	191,335	439,149
Total	14,169,157				2,342,226	5,375,827

for the year ended December 31, 2021

				Value of		
				Unobservable	Change in	Change in
	Fair Value	Valuation Technique	Unobservable Inputs	Inputs	Valuation +	Valuation -
Description	(in \$)				(in \$)	(in \$)
Cline Mining Corp., Floating Rate, 2022/07/08	12,198,455	Discounted Cash Flow	Discount rate	12%	2,016,460	4,628,136
Cline Mining Corp., Floating Rate, 2022/07/08	1,085,130	Discounted Cash Flow	Discount rate	12%	179,377	411,702
Total	13,283,585	•			2,195,837	5,039,838

Level 3 bonds consist of certain bond issues currently in distressed situations. The valuation for Cline Mining Corp. ("Cline") took into account the capital structure positioning and value relating to the expected cash flows of the company.

Notes to the Financial Statements (unaudited)

#### THE FUND

Marret High Yield Strategies Fund (the "Fund") is a closed-end investment fund established under the laws of the Province of Ontario and is governed by a declaration of trust dated May 28, 2009. Marret Asset Management Inc. ("Marret" or the "Manager") is the Manager of the Fund and provides all administrative services required by the Fund. CIBC Mellon Trust Company is the custodian (the "Custodian") of the Fund.

Units of the Fund commenced trading on June 17, 2009 on the Toronto Stock Exchange ("TSX").

The Fund is currently terminating pursuant to its Declaration of Trust which provides that, to the extent that the affairs of the Fund have not been completely wound up and all of the assets distributed to unitholders on or prior to the May 30, 2014 ("Termination Date"), the Declaration of Trust shall continue in force and effect to the extent necessary or desirable to permit the Trustee to complete the winding up of the affairs of the Fund and distribute the remaining assets to unitholders as soon as practicable and, in such event, the Trustee shall carry on no activities on behalf of the Fund except for the purpose of winding up the affairs of the Fund. The Manager is not actively investing the assets of the Fund which currently is made up primarily of one illiquid position: Cline Mining Corp. (the "Cline"). The Manager is seeking to liquidate the Cline position as soon as practicable and distribute the proceeds (net any amount necessary to provide for the liabilities of the Fund) to unitholders. The Fund will distribute the net proceeds from the remaining illiquid investment (net of any expenses associated with the disposal thereof) when proceeds are received by the Fund. The Fund will continue until such time as the remaining investment is sold. No ongoing management or other fees will be charged by the Manager for overseeing the liquidation of the remaining investment and the winding up of the Fund.

In December 2013, CI Financial Corp. completed its acquisition of 65% of the issued and outstanding common shares of the Manager. CI Financial Corp. is a diversified wealth management company publicly traded on the TSX under the symbol CIX.

On June 13, 2016, the Manager of the Fund announced that the Fund applied to voluntarily delist its Class A units from the TSX. The Class A units were delisted from the TSX at the close of trading on June 24, 2016.

On June 27, 2016, the Class A units commenced trading on the Canadian Securities Exchange ("CSE").

The address of the Fund's registered office is 15 York Street, Second Floor, Toronto, Ontario M5J 0A3.

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Manager on August 24, 2022.

### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with *International Financial Reporting Standards* as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IFRS").

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies of the Fund:

# a) Classification and recognition of financial instruments

The Fund classifies and measures its investments (such as fixed-income securities, equity securities, investment fund(s), exchange-traded fund(s) and derivatives) based on both the Fund's business model for managing those financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The Fund's portfolio of financial assets is managed and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and use that information to assess the assets' performance and to make decisions. The contractual cash flows of the Fund's debt securities are solely principal and interest, however, these securities are neither held for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows nor held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale. The collection of contractual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Fund's business model's objective. Consequently, all investments and derivatives are measured at fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPL"). Short sales are held for trading and are consequently classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL. Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as liabilities at FVTPL.

The Fund's obligations for net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units are presented at the redemption amount, which approximates their fair value. All other financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortized cost, which approximates their fair value. Under this method, financial assets and liabilities reflect the amount required to be received or paid, discounted, when appropriate, at the effective rate of interest.

Notes to the Financial Statements (unaudited) (cont'd)

#### b) Fair valuation of financial instruments

At the financial reporting date, listed securities are valued based on the last traded market price for financial assets and financial liabilities where the last traded price falls within the day's bid-ask spread. In circumstances where the last traded price is not within the bid-ask spread, the Manager determines the point within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value based on the existing market conditions. Unlisted securities are valued based on price quotations from recognized investment dealers, or failing that, their fair value is determined by the Manager on the basis of the latest reported information available. Fixed income securities, debentures and other debt instruments, including short-term investments, are valued at the quotation received from recognized investment dealers.

The fair value of private placements is determined by using valuation models that may be based, in part, on assumptions that are not supported by observable market inputs. These methods and procedures may include, but are not limited to, performing comparisons with prices of comparable or similar securities, obtaining valuation related information from issuers and/or other analytical data relating to the investment and using other available indications of value. These values are independently assessed by the Manager to ensure that they are reasonable. However, because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the estimated fair values for these securities may be materially different from the values that would have been used had a ready market for the investment existed. The fair values of private placements are affected by the perceived credit risks of the issuer, predictability of cash flows and the length of time to maturity.

#### c) Cash

Cash consists of demand deposits with financial institutions.

#### d) Cost of investments

Cost of investments represents the amount paid for each security and is determined on an average cost basis excluding commissions and transaction costs.

#### e) Investment transactions and income recognition

Investment transactions are recorded on the trade date — the date on which the Fund commits to purchase or sell the investment. The "Interest for distribution purposes" shown on the Statements of Comprehensive Income represents the coupon interest received by the Fund and is accounted for on an accrual basis. The Fund does not amortize premiums paid or discounts received on the purchase of fixed income securities except for zero coupon bonds which are amortized on a straight-line basis.

Dividends and distributions from investments are recognized on the ex-dividend/ex-distribution date.

# f) Functional currency

The Fund's subscriptions and redemptions are denominated in Canadian dollars, which is also the Fund's functional and presentation currency.

## g) Foreign exchange

Foreign currency amounts are translated into the functional currency as follows: fair value of investments, foreign currency forward contracts and other assets and liabilities at the closing rate of exchange on each business day; income and expenses, purchases and sales and settlements of investments at the rate of exchange prevailing on the respective dates of such transactions. Foreign exchange gains (losses) relating to cash are presented as "Foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash" and "Change in unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on cash" and those relating to investments and derivatives are presented within "Net realized gain (loss) on investments and derivatives" and "Change in appreciation (depreciation) in value of investments and derivatives" in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

#### h) Unit valuation

The total net asset value ("NAV") is calculated by subtracting the aggregate amount of the liabilities from the total assets attributable to each class of units. Net asset value per unit ("NAVPU") is calculated at the close of business on every valuation date as the net asset value attributable to each class of units divided by its outstanding units.

A valuation date is any day except Saturday, Sunday, a statutory holiday in Toronto, Ontario, or any other day on which the CSE is not open for trading.

As at June 30, 2022, December 31, 2021 and June 30, 2021, there were no differences between the NAV used for transactions with unitholders and the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units used for reporting purposes under IFRS.

Notes to the Financial Statements (unaudited) (cont'd)

#### i) Classification of units

The units of the Fund do not meet the criteria in IAS 32 for classification as equity and therefore, have been classified as liabilities. The Fund's units meet the classification as liability because the Fund has a fixed termination date.

### j) Commissions and other portfolio transaction costs

Transaction costs, such as brokerage commissions, incurred in the purchase and sale of securities, are included in "Commissions and other portfolio transaction costs" in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

#### k) Increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per unit

"Increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per unit" in the Statements of Comprehensive Income is calculated by dividing the increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period.

#### I) Withholding taxes

The Fund may, from time to time, incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and capital gains. Such income and gains are recorded on a gross basis and the related withholding taxes are shown separately in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

### CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period. The following discusses the most significant accounting judgments and estimates that the Fund has made in preparing its financial statements:

### Fair value measurement of investments and derivatives not quoted in active market

The Fund may, from time to time, hold financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets, such as unlisted securities, private securities or derivatives. Unlisted securities are valued based on price quotations from recognized investment dealers, or failing that, their fair value is determined by the Manager based on the latest reported information available. The fair value of private securities is determined by using valuation models that may be based, in part, on assumptions that are not supported by observable market inputs. These methods and procedures may include, but are not limited to, performing comparisons with prices of comparable or similar securities, obtaining valuation related information from issuers and/or other analytical data relating to the investment and using other available indications of value. These values were independently assessed by the Manager based on assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. However, because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the estimated fair values for these securities may be materially different from the values that would have been used had a ready market for the investment existed. The fair values of private securities are affected by the perceived credit risks of the issuer, predictability of cash flows and the length of time to maturity.

Valuation models use observable data, to the extent practicable. Since the outbreak of COVID-19, market volatility has increased significantly which results in fluctuation in quoted securities prices, widening of bid ask spreads and reduced liquidity in the market. These changes may also impact the observability of some of the model valuation inputs used, which may have an implication on classification of certain financial instruments within the fair value hierarchy. Areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty); volatilities, correlations and key assumptions concerning future developments require the Manager to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair values of financial instruments.

The Fund considers observable data to be market data that is readily available, regularly distributed and updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

#### IFRS 10

In accordance with IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements, the Manager has determined that the Fund meets the definition of an Investment Entity which requires that the Fund obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing investment management services, commit to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment income, or both; and measure and evaluate the performance of its investments on a fair value basis. Consequently, the Fund does not consolidate its investment in subsidiaries, if any, but instead measure these at FVTPL, as required by the accounting standard.

Notes to the Financial Statements (unaudited) (cont'd)

### 4. REDEEMABLE UNITS

Units issued and outstanding represent the capital of the Fund.

On May 30, 2014, the Fund suspended its redemptions.

As at June 30, 2022, the fair value of the Fund's net assets based on the CSE closing market price was \$6,978,510 ((December 31, 2021 - \$9,549,541) based on the CSE closing market price).

Redeemable unit transactions information appears in the Fund Specific Notes to Financial Statements.

# FEES AND EXPENSES

The Fund retained Marret Asset Management Inc., under an administration agreement (the "Administration Agreement") dated May 28, 2009 to administer all of the ongoing operations of the Fund. Prior to May 30, 2014, in consideration for the services provided by the Manager, the Fund paid a management fee equal to 0.25% per annum of the net asset value of the Fund. After May 30, 2014, the Fund no longer pays management fees.

Due to the illiquid nature of the remaining investments within the Fund, the Manager agree to pay all necessary expenses of the Fund until the Fund is able to liquidate its respective positions in Cline, at which time the Fund will reimburse the Manager the accrued payable.

#### INCOME TAXES

The Fund qualifies as a mutual fund trust under the *Income Tax Act* (Canada). The Fund's net income for tax purposes and net capital gains realized in any period are required to be distributed to unitholders such that no income tax is payable by the Fund. As a result, the Fund does not record income taxes. Since the Fund does not record income taxes, the tax benefit of capital and non-capital losses has not been reflected in the Statements of Financial Position as a deferred income tax asset. Income tax on net realized capital gains not paid or payable will generally be recoverable by virtue of refunding provisions contained in the *Income Tax Act* (Canada) and provincial income tax legislation, as redemptions occur. Occasionally, the Fund may distribute more than it earns. This excess distribution is a return of capital and is not taxable to unitholders.

# 7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK MANAGEMENT

# Coronavirus 19 (COVID-19) Impact

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, emergency measures taken in response to the spread of COVID-19 have resulted in significant disruption to business operations globally, resulting in an economic slowdown. Global equity and capital markets have also experienced significant volatility and weakness. The governments have reacted with significant monetary and fiscal interventions designed to stabilize economic conditions. These developments are constantly evolving and the duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic is highly uncertain and cannot be predicted at this time but could have a material impact on the future performance of the Fund. In the face of the current environment of heightened uncertainty and market volatility, the Manager continues to closely monitor its impact on the Fund's risk exposures from the portfolio holdings.

# **Ukraine-Russian Federation Conflict**

The conflict between Ukraine and the Russian Federation has resulted in significant volatility and uncertainty in financial markets. NATO, EU and G7 member countries, including Canada, have imposed severe and coordinated sanctions against Russia. Restrictive measures have also been imposed by Russia and some securities have materially declined in value and/or may no longer be tradable. These actions have resulted in significant disruptions to investing activities and businesses with operations in Russia. The longer-term impact to geopolitical norms, supply chains and investment valuations is uncertain.

While the situation remains fluid, the Manager continues to monitor ongoing developments and the impact to investment strategies.

# **Interbank Offered Rate Transition**

The Fund may trade in debt securities, some of which may be variable rate and have a LIBOR linked interest rate. LIBOR linked interest rates may be transitioned to an alternative benchmark before the Fund disposes of the investment. The impact of this transition, if any, will be captured in the change in fair value of these investments and is not expected to be material to the Fund.

Notes to the Financial Statements (unaudited) (cont'd)

### **Risk Management**

In the normal course of business, the Fund is exposed to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including other price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk). The Fund's overall risk management program focuses on compliance and execution of the Fund's investment objectives. The Manager seeks to minimize potential adverse effects of these risks on the Fund's performance by employing professional, experienced portfolio advisers, daily monitoring of the Fund's positions and market events. To assist in managing risks, the Manager also uses internal guidelines that identify the target exposure for each type of risk, maintains a governance structure that oversees the Fund's investment activities and monitors compliance with the Fund's stated investment strategy and securities regulations.

#### **Concentration Risk**

Concentration risk arises as a result of the concentration of exposures within the same category, whether it is a geographical allocation, product type, industry sector or counterparty.

Details of the Fund's exposure to concentration risk are available in the Fund Specific Notes to Financial Statements.

#### **Credit Risk**

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Fund. The main concentration of credit risk would be investments in debt instruments and derivatives. The fair value of debt instruments and derivatives includes consideration of the credit worthiness of the issuer and therefore represents the maximum credit exposure of the Fund.

Cash balances as disclosed in the Statements of Financial Position are maintained by the Custodian. The Manager monitors the credit worthiness of the Custodian on a regular basis. The credit rating of the Custodian as at June 30, 2022, was A+ (December 31, 2021 - A+).

#### **Liquidity Risk**

The Fund invests in investments that are illiquid. There can be no assurance that an adequate market for the Fund's investments will exist at all times, or that the prices at which the underlying investments trade, accurately reflect their net asset values. All liabilities are due in less than 3 months. Cline Mining Corp. bond positions owned by the Fund are considered illiquid and represent 98.94% of the Fund's net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at June 30, 2022 (December 31, 2021 – 98.47%).

### **Market Risk**

The Fund's investments are subject to market risk which is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market conditions.

# Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all instruments traded in a market or market segment.

### Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of investments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. This risk arises when financial instruments (including cash and cash equivalents) are denominated in a currency other than Canadian dollars, which represents the Fund's functional currency.

#### Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from changes in the prevailing levels of market interest rates, resulting in fluctuations in the value of interest-bearing financial instruments.

#### **Fair Value Hierarchy**

The Fund classifies its financial instruments that are carried at fair value using a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels. Inputs may be based on independent market data ("observable inputs") or they may be internally developed ("unobservable inputs"). The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs.

Notes to the Financial Statements (unaudited) (cont'd)

The three levels of the hierarchy are as follows:

Level (1) - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level (2) - investments with inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly

Level (3) - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Changes in valuation methods may result in transfers into or out of an investment's assigned level.

The Fund's policy is to recognize transfers into and out of the fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances giving rise to the transfer

Details of the Fund's exposure to financial instruments risks including concentration risk and the fair value hierarchy classification are available in the Fund Specific Notes to Financial Statements.

#### CLINE MINING CORP.

As a result of Allegiance Coal Limited's (Allegiance) purchase of all the shares in New Elk Coal Company, LLC ("NECC"), Cline held US\$35,120,670.84 principal of a secured note issued by NECC ("NECC Note"). The NECC Note is to be repaid as follows:

- US\$3 million paid in cash on the release of the NECC reclamation bonds held by the Colorado Division of Reclamation, Mining and Safety
  from the current bonds of approximately US\$5.5M (Allegiance has secured up to US\$10 million of insurance mine reclamation bonding to
  replace the existing bonds); the cash release is expected within 90 days of closing;
- US\$6 million upon the commencement of commercial production by NECC or by December 1, 2021, whichever is earlier;
- The remainder of the NECC Note to be repaid by Cline receiving 60% of NECC's retained earnings after NECC makes prudent provision
  for any preferred debt payments and obligations, and sustaining and working capital, until the NECC Note is paid in full, but in any event
  within 10 years of closing. The NECC Note will not bear interest.

To date, NECC has repaid US\$9 million of the NECC Note. US\$3 million after the release of NECC's reclamation bonds held by the Colorado Division of Reclamation, Mining and Safety. US\$6 million after reaching the December 1, 2021 outside date.

After a 1 for 5 reverse split on May 5, 2021, Cline holds 14,130,281 shares of Allegiance as a result Allegiance's purchase of all the shares in NECC. Allegiance shares had split adjusted closing price of \$0.40 Australian dollar ("\$A") on December 31, 2020 and a closing price of \$A0.48 on June 30, 2022.

Allegiance announced a new CEO, Jon Romcke, who started with the company in May. Mr. Romcke's experience operating mines is expected to be an asset to Allegiance as New Elk moves past its start-up phase and Black Warrior ramps up.

New Elk production increased in the first quarter of 2022, most notably in the month of March. Management expected production to more than double in the second quarter. New Elk continues to make progress in increasing its skilled workforce, optimising production, and negotiating additional sales agreements.

Allegiance raised A\$42.9 million through a secured convertible note in May 2022. The note allowed Allegiance to refinance some outstanding debt, pre-fund interest payments, and fun future working capital needs.

Legal Notice

Certain names, words, phrases, graphics or designs in this document may constitute trade names, registered or unregistered trademarks or service marks of Marret Asset Management Inc. Marret is a trademark of Marret Asset Management Inc.

You can get additional copies of these Financial Statements, at your request, and at no cost by calling collect (416) 214-5800, by emailing investors@marret.com, or by asking your representative.

This document and other information about the fund is available on the Marret Asset Management Inc. website at www.marret.com, or at www.sedar.com.

